INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUL ENERGY PRIVAI'L LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standaryds (Ind AS) Tinancial Statements

1.

We have audited the secompanying financial statements of Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy
Private Lindited {(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incame), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Fquity for the vear then ended, and a summary of the significant
aceounting policics and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statcments

2.

The Cornpany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
stutements to give a true and fair view of the State of affairs (financial position), loss {inancial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounling prineiples generally aceepted in India, including the
Tndian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
zo15 (as amended) under Section 1133 of the Aet. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting vecords in accordance wilh the provisians of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and [or preventing and detecting trauds and other irregularitics: selection
and application of appropriate accounting policics; making judgments and estimates Lhat are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, thal were operaling elfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completencss of
Lhe aecounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view ard ace free from material misstatement, whether due to
frand or error.

Anditors’ Responsibility

3

&

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audil.

We have taken inte aceount Lhe provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the andit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We condieted owr audil of the Dd A8 financind statenjents in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143010) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia. Those Standards and
pronouncements reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to pblain reasunable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the [nd AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgmeont, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatenent of Lhe Tnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or erver. In making Uiose risk assessments, the auditor
considers inlernal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS finaneial
stalements that give a true and fair view, iz order to design audit proeedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and e veasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Direclows, as well us evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
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7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
3. In owr opinion and to the best of our informaiion and according to the explanations given Lo us,
the aforesaid Ind AS Ginancial statements give the information required by the Act in Lhe manner
so required and give a true and fair view in gonformity with the aceounting prineiples generally
accepted in India, of the state of alfairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017,
and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matter
9. The financial information of the Comipany for the year ended March 34, 2016 and the transition

date npening balanec shockas al Apiil 1, 2015 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are
hased on the previousl issued statutory inancial statements for the years ended March 31, 2016
and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 {as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodifled opinion
dated May 26, 2016 and May 23, 2015 regpeatively. The adjustments to those financial statements
tor the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS
have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regolalory Requirements

1. As required by the Compardes {Auditor's Report) Qeder, 2016, issued by the Central Government

L.

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (herein after referred to as the
“Order™), and on the basis of such checks of the books and recovds of the Company as we
considered appropriate and aceording 1o the information and explanations given to us, we give in
the Annexure B a staternent on the matiers specilied in pavagraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comment in the Annexure B, as required by Scetion 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:

{a) we have sought and ohtaincd all the information and explanations which to the best of our
lnowvledge and belicf were necessiry for the purposes of onr audit.

(b) In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Compuny so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreemenl with the books of account.

(d) Iuowr apinion, the alorvesaid Tnd AS Ananeial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(@) Onthe hasis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on March 41, 2017
Laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as an March
41, 2017 from being appeinted as a divector in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act,
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{f) wWith respect 1o the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reparting of the
Company and the operating effeetivencess al such coutrals, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A,

(g) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Repaort in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinien and to the best of
our knowledge and belief and aceording to the infermalion and explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 6.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2017
for which there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. "There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2017,

iv. The Company did not have any holdings or dealings in Specilied Bank Notes during the
peried from 8th Novamber, 2016 to 3oth December, 2016 — Refer Note 20,

T'or Price Waterhouse For Chaturvedi & Shah

Firm Registration Number: 301112F Firm Registration Numbey: 101720W
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Prignshn Gundana Vijaw apawaliya

Fartner Partner

\}flembership Number: 109553 Membership Number: 104859

Place: Munibni Place: Mumbai

Diale: April g, 2017 Date: April 12, 2017
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Reporl on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scetion 143
af the Act

1. We have audited the inlernal inaneial controls over financial reparting of Rajasthan Sun Technique

Enecrgy Private Timited (*lhe Compuny™) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
nancial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

el

The Company’s management s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial eontrels
based un the internal control over financial reporting criterla established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal enntrel slaled in the Guidance Note oa Audit of Intermal Firancial
Contrels Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (JCAL).
These responsibilities inctude the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that weve operating effectively for ensuring the ovderly and efficient cunduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, lhe safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, Lhe aceuraey and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial infoermation, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsihility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company's infernal Hnancial controls over linancial
reporting based on pur audit. We eonducted our audit in accordanee with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable Lo an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal fnancial controls and both issued
by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirenients
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls ever financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated offeelively in all material respects.

. Ouraudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls svstem over financial reporting and Lheir opevating effectiveness. Our andit of
internal financial conlrols vver Gpancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
linancial controls over finanelal reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based v the assessed
risk. ‘The procedures seleeled depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a hasis for

our audil opinion on the Compuny’s Internal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

fr. A campany’s internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financlal reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanes with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intesmal finaneial eontrol over financial reporting includes those policies and proeedures
that (1) perlain to the majntenance of records that, in reasonable detail, acauvately and faicly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as neecssary to permit preparalion of financial statements in accordance
with genevally aceepled acconnting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made gnlyv in aceocdance with authovisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely deteetion ol unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's asscts that could have a matetial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal Anaacial conlrols over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or impeoper management override of controls, material misstatements due Lo
ervor or fraud may occur and oot be detected, Alse, projections of any avaluation af Lhe ioternal
financial controls over financial reportng to future periods are subject to the visk that the internal
financial contrel over financial reporting may become inadequate bacause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of complinnee with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

a.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respeets, an adequate internal inaneial controls
svstern over financial reporting and such internal finaneial conlrols over financial reporting were
operating cffeetively as at Mareh 31, 2017, based un the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal conteol stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Insttute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Watcrhanse For Chaturvedi & Shah

Firm Regislvation Number: 301n3aE Firm Registration Number: 1G1720W
Chartered Acconntants Chavltered Accountants

Privafishll Gundana Vijay Napawaliva

Partner Partmer

Yembership Nnmber: 100553 Membership Number: 109859

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 12, 2017 Date: April 12, 2017
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Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Rajasthan Sun Teclinique Fnergy Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended
March 31, 2007

(a} The Company is maintaining proper records showing tull particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b} The fixed assels ol the Company have been phyvgically verified by the Management during the vear

fc)

tii.

(R

vii. {a)

Vi,

and no matertal discrepancies have been noticed oun such verificaticn. Inowr opinipn, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

‘The title decds of immovable properties, as disclosed in fixed assets note 4.1 to the financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company dees not have any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause a(ii) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unseeured, to companics, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or otlier parties covered in the register maintnined under Section 18¢ of the
Act, Therefore, the provisions of Clause g(iii), {511} (a), (i11) (1) and (iii) {¢} of the said Order are
net applicable o the Company.

The Company has not granted any Ieans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186, Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(1v) of the said Ovder ure not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the pullie within Lhe meuning of Sections 73,
74. 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. During the vear
under audit, no order has been passed by the Company law board or Natiomal Company law
tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any cowrt or any other Teibinal.

The Central Government of India, has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-zection (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, for the products of the Company. However, according to the
information and explanation given lo us, the preseribed accounts and records have not been
e, sinee company has not staled commercial operations.

According to the information and explanalions given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in oir opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
in respecl of prufessional tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, emplovees’ stale insurance, sales
tax, incorne tax, serviee tax, duty of customs, duly of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. ‘There are no undispued
amounts payable in respect of such applicable statutory dues as at Mareh 31, 2017 for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

According Lo the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there arc no duces of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise ar value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government as at the balance sheet date,

In our opinlon, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not raised any moneys by way of inftial public offer, {urther public offer {including debt
instenments) and term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.
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X. Dving the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices tn India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported dwring
the vear, nor have we heen infurmed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 ave not applicable to i, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.,

wifi,  The Company has cotered into fransactions with reluted parties in compliance with the provisinns
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have beeu
disclosed in the financial statements as required under [ndion Accounting Standard (AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in the Campanies {Trndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended) under Section 1233 of the Act.

xiv.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placemenl of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year nnder veview. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable Lo the Company.

X The Company has not entered into any non eash Lransactions wilh s directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xv) of the Ovder are not applicable (o
the Company.

xvi, The Company is not required to be registered under Section q5-14 of the Reserve Bank of Tndia
Aet, 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 30xvi) of the Order are not applicable to Lhe
Comnpuany.

Fur Price Waterhouse For Chaturvedi & Shah

Firm Registration Number: 301112E Firm Registration Number: 101720W

Chartered Aceountants Chartered Accountants

Privinshu Gundana Yijay Napawaliya

Pavtner Fartaer

Membership Number: 100551 Membership Nuniber: 109839

Piace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: april 12, 2017 Date: Aptil 12, 2017



Rajastnan Sun lechnigque Energy Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Cther Intangible assets
Financial assels
Derivative instrumenrts
Other financial agsels
Cther non-current assels

Current assets
Financial assels
Investments
Trade recewables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances ather than cash and cash eguivalents
Loans
Cther financial assets
Other current assels

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity sharz capital

Other equity
Inslrument enlirely eyuity in nalurs
Reserves and surplus

Liabilities
Non-currant tiabllities
Financial lishilties
Borrowings
Other financial liabilitles
Frovisions
Ctner non-current liabilities

Current hiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Clher financial habiliies
Qiher currgnl liabilities
Frowisions
Current tax Liabilities {net}

Total Equity and liahilitias

Rupees in lakhs

Note As at As al As at
No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
4.1 2,833 3183 3,125
4.2 248,306 244,418 222,411
4.3 652 - 1
4.4{a) 1,104 1,953 1.134
4.4(b} 4 4 4
4.5 7.831 8,612 13,043
4.6{a) - - 8,559
4.6{k} 4,637 820 -
4.6{c) 332 11,251 1,746
4.6(d) 9,954 - -
4.6(g) 5 2 ®
4,6¢F 199 287 522
4.7 126 128 108
275,393 271,665 250,653
4.3 286 286 286
491 54,519 36,009 29
4.9.2 65,314 86,525 55,241
4,10{a) 134,650 147,976 148,377
4.10{1) - - 4,914
411 75 46 18
4,12 1,466 1,466 1,481
413 - - 13,721
4.14 18,399 18.747 13,972
4.15 374 423 86
4,16 18 9 17
417 292 178 511
275,393 271,665 250,653

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Signiticant accounting policies
Notes on finangial slatements

The accompanying notes ars an integral part of these financial stalemenls.

2
1tc 20




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

As per our Report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Priypfsu Gundana
Parlner
Wernbershin Na. 109563

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101720 W

Vijay Napawaliya
Partnar
Membership No. 10$358

Place ; Mumcbai
Cate ﬁ?]}.u , IQ-}Q.D 17

For and an behalf of the Board aof Directors

Mantw Kumar Ghosh
Cirector
N Number 07644889

SatyendraMghdanlal Sarupria
Director
OIM Number 00270718

Place : Mumbai

Date - ﬁT){" IQ_,Q-Olfr’



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Particulars Note
No.
Other Income 418

Total Income

Expenses
Finance cosls 4.19
Deprecialion and amortization expenses 4.1

Total expenses
Profit/{Loss) before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Cther Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit orloss
Remeasurements of net defined benelil plans

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B)

Earnings/ {Loss) per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic (Rupegs) 11

Diluted (Rupees) 11
Significant accounling policies 2
MNotes on financial statements 1to 20

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financial statements

697 1,804
697 1,804
1,779 97%
129 145
1,908 1.121
(1.211) 683
- 99
(1,211) 584
{(1,211) 584
(42.39) 20.44
{42.39) 10.22
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For Price Waterhouse
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 &

Priy&’ﬁ‘slfu Gundana
Partner
Menibership No. 109553

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo: 101720 W

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No, 109859

Piace : Mumbai

Dale Afmi’l {0, 2014

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

p
Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Director

DIN Number 07654438589

Satyendra\Mphdhlal Sarupria
Director
CIN Number 00270718

Place : Mumbai

Date : t‘ﬂﬁ)tﬁ fQJ, 2003



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for ihe year ended March 31, 2017

(A

(B}

)

Cash flow from/ {used in} Operating activities
Met Profilf {Loss) hefare tax
Adjustrnents for:
Divigend income
Inlerest income
Finance cost
Profit on sale of invesiment in mutual fund
Unreahsed loss / (gain) on derivative contract
Bepreciation and amortisation expenses

Mel cash generated from Operating activilies

Cash flow fromf {usad in} investing activities

Purchase of Progerly, plant and equipmeant {including Capilal wiork-in-
grogress and Capital advancas)

{Purchase) Sals of investments (Met}

Dividend receved

Interesi racaived

Taxes Fawd net of refund

Increased / (Dacrease) iy Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents

Mat cash flow (usead in) Investing activines

Cash flow from/ {used in) Financing activities
Inigr corparate deposit received

Inter corporate deposit repaid

Repayment of berrowing - secursd

Interest and finance charges paid

Net cash generaled/ (used in) Financing activilies
Met increases (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of tha year:
Bank balance - currert account”
Bank balance - fixed depesits accaunt”
Cash and cash squivalenis at the end of the year:

Bank balance - current account”
Bank balance - fixed deposits account®

“including interasl on fixed deposis classified as cash and cash equivalents.
The accompanying notes are an integral part ol thess financials statements

Year ¢ended
March 31, 2017

Rupzas in lakhs
Year ended
harch 31, 2016

{(1,211) 663
- @
(697) {200
1,779 976
- 1538)
. {1.068)
129 145
(631) (2,265)
- 9,098
- @
637 200
113 (56) .
{9,894) .
(9,775) 6,074
18,940 22.359
{400} (1003
{10,578) (9,950)
{9,076} [9.777)
(1,144) 2.532
{10.919) 9,506
1,217 444
16,034 1,302
332 1217
. 10,034
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For Price Waterhouse
Charlered Accountants
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Partner
Wembership No. 102553

For Chaturvedi & Shah
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Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mantu Kumar Ghosh
Dirszclor
DIN Number 07644888
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Diractdr
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Chartered Accountants
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Rajasthan Sun Technigque Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemants as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017

1} General information

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Privale Limiled is a wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Powsr Limiled The Company
is a Special Furpose Vehicke to davelop and generats 100 mega watt (MW) Solar Cencentrated Thermal Power Project
at Ohursar. Near Pokhran, District Jaisalmer. Rajasthan. The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement
{(PPA) for 100 MWW capacity with MTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN).

The Company is a private limited company which is incomparated and domicited in India under the provisions of the
Campanies Act. The registercd office of the Company is located al H Block, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowladge
City, Navt Mumbai - 400710.

These financial statements were authorised for 1ssue by the hoard of diractors an Aprl 12 2047,

2) Significant accountlng policies and critical accounting estimates and |udgments:
2.1 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemen(s are set out below. These
policies have been consislently applied 10 ail the years presented, unless othacwise stated

(a) Basis of preparation
Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards

The linancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{"Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rulgs, 2015 and relevani provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"}). These are the Company's first Ind AS financial slatements and Ind AS 101,
First-time Adeplion of Indian Accounting Standards’ has been applied. The policies set out below have been
consislently applied during the year presentad.

Faor all periods up to and including lhe year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared ils financial stalements
In accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and clher refevant provisions of tha Act (“Previous GAAR").

These (inancial statements far the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind A3, An explanation of haw the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, finangial performance and cash flows including reconciliations and descriplions of
the effect of the transition are provided in nole 3 bealow

Historical cost convention
The financial slatemeanis have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the following:

o Cerain inancial assets and linancial liahilities at fair value;
« Defined benefit plans — plan assets that are measurad at fair value:

Fair vaiuae measurement

Fair value 15 the price thal would be receivad o sell an assel or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Cempany uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dala are avallable to measure fair value, Inaximising the
use of relevant chservable inputs @nd rninimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are categorised
within the fair value hizrarchy, described as follews, based on the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair
value measurgmenl as a whole:

= Leval 1 — Quoled {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lahilities

+  Level 2 — Waluation technigues for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly obsarvahle

= Leval 3 — Vatuation lechniques for which the lowast level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

(b}

(e

Current vls-a-vis nen-current classification

The assets and lishilities reported in the balance sheel are classdied on a "current/non-current basis”™, wilh
separate reporting of assets held for sale and labilites. Current assets, which include eash and cash equivatents,
are assets that are intended to be realized. gold or consumed during the narmal operating cycle of the Company
ar in the 12 months following he balance sheet date; current liabiliies are liabiltizs that are expected b be settled
during the narmal operating cycle of the Company or within the 12 months Tollowing the clase of the financial year.

Recent accounting prancuncements
Standards issued but not yet effactive

Amendment to Ind AS 7:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entities to provide disclosures thal enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in ligbitities arising from financing activities. including bolh changes arising from cash flows
and nan-cash changes. suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation belween the opening and closing balancas in the
bialance sheet for liabilties ansing from financing aclivities, 10 meet the disclosure requirement,

Preperty, plant and eguipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All ather items of properly. plant and equipment are slated at historical
cosl less depreciation. Histoncal cost includes expenditure that is diractly alinbutabla to the acquisition of The
items., Subsequent costs are included in the a3s0t's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
approprate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assaciatad vath the item will flow 1o the
Company and the cost of the item can be measurad reliably. The carrying amounl of any component accounted
for as a separale asset 15 dergcognisad when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged ta profit or
foss during the regorting period in which they are incurred.

Expenditure incurred on assels which are not ready for their inlendad use comprising direcl cost, related incideniat
expeanses and altributable borrowing cost are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Accordingly all project related expenditure viz, civil works, machinery under ereclion, conglruction and ercction
malerials, pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly attiributable to construction of praject, borrowing cost,
construction sfures, and direct operalionai expenses {nal of revenue during constructions) related to the units of
power generated In the interim penad, pending capitalisation, are disclosed as Capilal work-in-progress

Transition to Ind AS;
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elacled o avail far value of all of ids property plant and squipinant
recognised as at Aprl 1, 2015 as deemed cost.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives ad residual value:

Deprecistion on PPE 18 provided to the axtent of depreciable amount on Writlen Down Method (WDEV) based on
uselul lifz of the following assets as prescribed in Pant C of Schedule 1l 1o the Compames Act, 2013 exceplin
respect of Plant and equipment where useful life has been estimaled as 25 years based on Internal assessement
and technical evaluation by management.

Particulars | Estimated useful lives
Buldings J to 30 years
Lease hald land 30 years
Preperty, plant and equipment Jto 25 vears
| Furniture and fixturas 10 years
Motor Vehicles 3 to 8 years
| Office equipments 3t 10 vears
_Compulars 31ic & years

In respect of additions or exlgnsions forming an integral part of existing assefs and insurance spares, including
incremental cost arising on account of transiation of forgign currency liabilites for acquisition of Fixed Assets,
dapreciation 18 provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets.

Estimated usefut lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into accaunt
commercial and technological ohsolescence as well as normal wear and Lear and adjusied prospectivaly, if
appropriate.

Lease hold land is amorised aver the lease period from the date-ofraceipt of advance possession or execution of
lease deed, whichever 15 earlier.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

{d)

{e)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition nel afl recoverable taxes less accurmnulated amorlization ¢
depletion and mpairmant foss, it any. The cost compnses of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working candition for the intenced use and adjusiment ansing from
exchange rale variation aliributable to the intangible asseats.

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of ntangible assets which are nol ready lo use st he reporting date is
disclosed under “Intargible assets under development”

Amortisation method and periods

Amortization is charged on a straight-ine basis over a periad of lhree years. The estimated useful life and
amortization melhod are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, wilh the effect of any changes in
the eslimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Transition to Ind AS:

On transifion to [nd A3, the Campany has elected 10 continue with the carrying valua of all of intangible assets
recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAFP and use thal carrying value as the deemed
cost of intangtble assets

Impairmen{ of nen-financial assets

Assais which are subject 1o deprecialion or amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances ndicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The receverable aimount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of dispesal and valug in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which therg are separalely identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash infloves from other assets or groups of assels (cash-generating units). Non-financiat
assets olher than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporing period.

Trade Receivable

Trada recevanles are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently measured &t amortised cost using the
effective mteraslt melhod, less provision for impawrment.

Financial instruments:

A tinancial instrument is any contracl that gives rise o a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instruments of another entity.

lnvestments and other financial assets
i.  Classification

The Company classifies its financial assels in fhe following rmeasurement categories:
+  those fo be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or
thraugh profit or loss), and
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the enlity’s husiness medel for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Far assets measured al [air value, gains and losses will either be recarded in profit or 1055 or other
comprehensive incoms For inveslments in debtinstiruments, this will depend on the business model in
which lhe investrment is held. The Company has glecicd to account for investments in equity instrumants of
fellow subsidianes al cost inits financial stalements.

The Cempany reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assels changes.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial siatements as of and far the year ended March 31, 2017 [continued)

if.

Measurement

Al witial recognition, lhe Company measurcs a financial assat al its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset nol al T4ir value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are directly altnbinable to the acquisiion of
iha financial assel. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
axpensed in profit or ioss,

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Campany’s busingss
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of Ihe asset There are lhree measurament
calegories into which the Company classifias its debt instrurrents:

Amortised cosi: Assels that are held for eoliection of canlractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interesl are measured al amorlised cost A gain or foss on a debl
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cast is recognised in prafit or loss when the asset is
derscognised or impaired. Interest incomea fram these financial assels is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehenslve income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for coltection of
contractual cash flows and for selling tha financial assets, where the assets' cash flovs represent solely
payments of principal and interesl, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
KMovements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for lhe recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gaing and losses which are recognised in prafit and loss.
When the financial assel is derecagnised, the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in ather gains/ {losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is includad in olher income using the effective interest rate methad.

Fair value through praofit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amerised cost or FVYOCI
ara measured al faic value through grofit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt invesiment thal is subsequently
measured al fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
Interesl income from these financial assets is included in other income.

{mpairment of financial assets

Tne Company assesses on a forward looking basis Lhe expectad credit losses associatzd with its assels
camied al amorlised cost. The impairment methodclogy applied depends on whether there has hean a
significant incrgase n cradit nisk

For trade receivables only, the Company apples the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 108 Financial
Instruments, which requires expecled hfetime losses to he recognised from initial racognition of the
receivables.

Derecognitlon of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

« The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- retains tha conlractual rights o receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entily has lransferred an asset. the Company evaluates whether it has translerred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset In such cases, the financial assel is derecognised.
Where the entity has not transferred substanlially all risks and rewards of ownershig of the financial asset, the
financial asset s not derecognised. Where the enfily has neither transfarrad a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assat, ihe financial asset 1s derecognised if
the Company has not retained control of the (inancial asset Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset is conlinuad 10 be recognised to e extent of conlinuing involvament in tha financial
asset



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

V.

vi.

Income recognition
Interesl income

Interesl income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective intersst rate methed. The effective
intarest rale is the rale that exactly discounts eslimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of the
{inancial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial assst. When calculating the effzctive intrrest rate,
the Company estimates the expectad cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument bul doeg not congider the expected cradit losses,

Dividend

Dividends are recognised in protit or iass only when the right to recsive payment is established, it 15 prabable
thal the econaomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company. and the amaunt of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Derivative Financial Instruments:
Derivative are intially recognised at fair value on the date of denvative contract 1s entered inta and are

subsequenlly re-measurs to their fair value al lha end of the each reporing penod. Further gain / (losses)
arising on sattlemont and fair value change on derivative contracts are classified fo finance cost,

{h} Offsetting Financlal instruments

0

i)

Financial assets and liabilities arz offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable righl ta offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sellle on a net basis or
realise the assal and sellle the lighility simultaneously The legally enforceable right must nct be ¢ontingent on
future evenls and must be enforcaablg in the normal coursa of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company ar the counterparty.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incrementat costs directly attnbutabls to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, nel of fax, from the proceeds

Financial liabilities

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equily instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilties or as equity in
accordance wilh th substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial fiahility and
an equity instrument

An gquity instrument is any contracl that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an eniity after
deducting all of its liahililies.

nitlai recognition and measurement

All financial liabilhties are recognised initially al fair value and, in lha case of loans and borrowings and
payables, nat of directly attribulable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liablilies include trade and other payables. lpans and barrowings including bank
ovardrafis, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabiliies depends on therr classification, as described befow:

Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried at amertised cost, any difference belween the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value [s recognised in the slalement of profit and loss aver the
period of lhe borrawings using the effective inferest methad.

Fees paid on the estabishment of Ican facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the Inan to the extent
lhal it 1s probatle that same or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is defarred until the
draw-down occurs. To the exlenl there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment forliguitily scrvices and amortised over lhe period of 1he
facility ta which it relates



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Netes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (conlinued)

Trade and other payable: Thase amounts represents obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers Thase payable are classified as current
liabilihes if payment is due wilkin one year or less otharwise they are presented as non-current liabilities
Trade and payables are subsequently measured at amonised cosl using the effective interest malhod.

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guaraniee contracl are subsequently measured al lhe higher of
the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount inibially recognised l2ss cumulalive
amaorlisation wherz appropriale

Whera guarantees in relation 1o loans of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounied for as contributions and recagnised as part of the cost of the investment. On transition to Ind AS,
the Company has recegnised far value changes as parl of the relained earnings.

Derecognition

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheel whan lhe obligation specified in the contract is

discharged, cancelled or expirad. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that

has been extinguished or transferred ta another parly and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recogmised in profit or loss as other gains/{iossas).

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing lizbility are substantially modified, such an exchange or immadification is
treated as the derccognilion of the origingl liability and the recognition of a new liability The differsnce in the
respective carrying amounts is recagnised in the statement of profil or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless lhe Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for al lzast 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach ol a
malarial provision of a long-term loan arrangement cn cr before the end of tha reporting period with the
sffect thal lhe hability becomes payable on demand on the reporling dale, the entity dogs not classify the
liability as current, if the landsr agreed, afler the reporting period and befora the approval of the financial
stalements for 1ssue, not to demand payment as s consequence of the breach..

(k) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

{n

Provisions

Provisions are recagnisad when the Company has a present legal or constructive ooligation as a resull of past
avents; it is probable that an outllow of resources will be required to seltle the obligation: and the amount has
been reliably eslimatad

Provisions are measured at the prasent value of management's best estimats of the expenditure reguired to settle
\ha present obligation at the end of the reponing period The discount rate used o datermine the present value is
a pre-lax rale that reflects current markest assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interesi expense.

Contingent llabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will ba confirmed onty by the accurrence or non-cccurrence of one of more uncertain future events not
wholly wilthin the conlrol af the Company. A present abligation that arises from pasl evenls where it is gither nol
probable hal an cut{low of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate af the amount cannot be made,
is lermed as contingent liability.

Contingent Assets:

A contingent assel is disclosed, where an inllow of economic benslits is probable.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construclion or production of
a gualilying asset are capitalised during the period of me that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessanly take a substantial period of fime to get
ready for their intended use or sale

Investment incoma earned on the lemporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendilure on
qualifying assets is daducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period N which-tey-are incurred.
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Notes to the financial statemments as of and for the year ended March 21, 2017 (continued)

(m) Foreiga currency translation:

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statemsnts of the Company are measured using the currency of lhe primary
geonoinic environment In which the Company operates {"tha funclional currengy’}. The financial statements are
prasenied In 'Indian Rugges’ (INR}, which is the Company's functional and lhe Company’s presentation
currancy

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translaled into the functional currency using the exchanges rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions

All exchange differences arising on reporting of short term foreign currency monetary items other than
denvative contracts at rates different from those at winch lhey were initially recorded are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss! Capital Work-in-Prograss

In respact of foreign exchangs dilferences arising on revaluation or settlement of lang term fareign
currency manetary items. the Coinpany has availed the option available in the Ind AS-101 to continue the
policy adopted in Pravious GAAP for accounting of exchangs differences ansing from translation of long-
term foreign currency monetary iterms outstanding as on March 31, 2018, wherein:

*Foraign exchange differences on account of depreciable asset, is adjlusled ir the cost of depreciable
asset and would be depreciated over the balance |ife of asset.

In olher cases, foreign exchange difference is accumulated in "foreign currency monetary item translation
difference account” and amodised over the balance period al such long term asset / habilities.
MNon-monetary items denominated in foreign currenay are stated at the rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions / exchange rate at which transaclion is aclually effacted.

(n} Revenue recognition:

Revenue is maasured al he fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Campany recognises
revenue when the amount of ravenue can be reiiably measured, it is probabie that future economic benelits will
flow to the entity and spacific criteria have been met for each of Ihe Company’s aclivities, Amounis disclosed as
revenue are nel of discounts, returns; value added taxes and amounts collected an behalf of third paries.

Sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an accrual basis and in accordance with the provisions of Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA} with NTPC Vidyul Vyapar Nigasn Limited {NVYN) read vath Cenfral Electricity
Regulatory Commission {CERC) regulations {Also refer nole 2.1 {c) above),

Other operating income
Revenue fram certified redyction units is recognised as per terms and conditions ageeed with trustes on fture
sale of certified ermission reduction units.

{0) Employee benefits:

Short-term cbligations

Liabifities for wages and salaries, including nen-monetary benelits thal are expected (o be settled wholly wilhin 12
moriths after the end of the period in which the einployees render the relaled service are recoghised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporling pened and are measured at the amounts expected to be pad
when the liabilies are settled The liabilites are presenled as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet



Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

{p}

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The labilitias for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settfed wholly within 12 manths after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service They are (herelore measurad as the present
value of expected fulure paymants to be made in respect of servicas provided Ly employees up to the end of the
reporing period using the projectad unit credit method The benefits are discounted using the market yields at lhe
end of the reporting peniod that have terms approximating 1¢ 1he terms of the relaled obligation. Remaasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recogniged in profit or loss/
Capital Work-In-Progress,

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance shest if the entily does not have an unconditional
right 10 defer settlement for at leasi lwelve months after the reporling penod, regardless of when the actual
selllement is expected to occur.

Post employee abligations

The Company operates the fallowing post-empioyment schemes;
- defined benefil plans such as gratuity
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratulty abligations

The liability or asset recognised in he balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benafit obligation al the end of the reporting period less the fair vaiue of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by actuaries using the prajected unit ¢redit method,

The prasent valuz of the defined bencfit abligation denaminated in rupees is determined by discounting the
estimalad future cash outflows by reference to market yields al the end of the reporling pericd on government
honds that have terms approximating (o the torms of the relatad obligaticn.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defingd benetit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in empluyee benefit expenss in the staterent of profit and
loss/ capital wark in progress.

Rameasurement gains and losses arising from expangnce adiusiments and changes in actuanal assumptions are
recognised in the penod ;m wiich they ocour, directly in other compranensive income They are included o
retained eamings in the stalement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulling from plan amendmenlts or curtaiiments are
recognised immadialely in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined coatrlbution plans

Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local reguiations.
The Company has no further payment cbligations gnce the coniributicns have been paid The contributians are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and ihe contributions are recognised as employes benefit expense
when lhey are dus. Frepaid contributions are recogrised as an assel ta the gxtent that a cash refund or a
reduclion in lhe future payments 1s available.

Superannuation

Certain employeeas of the Company are partigipan!s in a defined contribution plan. The Cormipany has no further
obligations to the plan beyond its monthly contribulions which are contributed to a trust fund, the corpus af which
15 invesied with Reltance Life Insurance Company Limited

income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perind's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adiusted by changes in deferred tax assels and liabilities
allnbutable to temporary differences and to unused 1ax losses,

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the lax laws enacled or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporfing period in the countries wharg Lhe Company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax relums with respect to situations in which applicable fax
regulation is subject to inlerpretation. 1L establishes provisions whete-appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the lax aulhorilies.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

(o)

{r)

(s)

(1)

(u)

Deferrad income tax is pravided in fuil, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
habilites and their carrying amounts in the financial slalements Deferred income tax is aiso not accounted for if it
arises from initial recogniion of an asset or liability in a lransaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the Iransaction affects neithar accounting profil nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is
datermined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacled or subslantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected la appty whan the related deferred income tax assct is reatised or the deferred income
tax abilily is sellled.

Deferred {ax assets are racognised for all deduchble tempoerary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that fulure laxable amounits will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels
and liabilities. Current tax assels and lax liabilities are offset where Lhe entity has & legally enforceable right to
offset and inlends either In sellla on a nst basis or to realise lhe asset and settie the liability simullaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recogmsed in profit or loss. except to lhe extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or direcily in equily. In this case, lhe lax is als0 recognised in olher comprehensive
income ar direclly in equity, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalants

For tha purpose of presentation in the staternant of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, deposits held st call
with finangial mstitutions, other short-term, highly liquid investmenls with ariginal maturities of three months or less
frem date of acquisition that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

Diluted earnings per share
Ciluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earings per share (o take into
account:

- the after income tax effect of intarest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,
and

- the weighled average numiber of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming Lhe
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indiract method, whereby prefit before 1ax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of pasl or fulure cash receipts ¢or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing aclivities of the Company are segregated based an the
available information.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporiad w1 a manner consistent with Lhe internal reporting provided (o Lhe chief operating
decisian-maker. The chief cperating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been idenlified as the chief executive officer and the chiefl financial
cfficer thal makes strategic decisions,

Dividends:

Frovision 1s made far the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately althorised and ne lenger at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
peried.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continucd)

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Preparing the financial statements under Ind AS requires management lo take decisicns and make
eslimates and assumglions that may impact the value of revenues, costs, assets and habilities and the related
disclosures concerning the itsms involved as well as conlingent assets and liakilities al the balance sheel date
Estimatas and judgements are conlinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other faclers,
including expectations of future evenis thal are believad t© be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company make astimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definilion, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumglions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilibies within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(a) Useful lives of Power plant and depreciation method
Management of the Company decided the estimated useful lives of power plant and respective depreciation. The
accounling estimale is based on the expected wears and tears incusred during power genaration. Wears and
tears can be significantly differenl following renovation each tme. Whan the useful ives differ from the originai
astimated useful lives. management will adjust the estimated useful lives accordingly. It is possible thal the
aslimates made based on existing experience are different Lo the actual outcomes within the nexl financial period
and could cause a malerial adjustment to the carrying amount of Property. plant and equipments {Refer note 4 1),

{b) Income taxes

There are transactiens and caleulations for which the ullimale lax detarmination is uncertain and wouid gel
finalized on ¢completion of assessment by tax authorittes, Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amaounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
perod in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax on temparary differences reversing within [he tax haliday peried is measured at the tax rales lhat arg
expacled to apply during the tax noliday period, which is the the nil tax rate. Deferred tax on lemporary differances
rgvarsing after the tax holiday pericd is measured at the enacted or substantively enacled tax rates that are
expacted o apply after the tax holiday period (Refer note 12).

(c) Fair value measurement and vatuation process

The management determines the appropriate valuation technique and inputs for fair value measurement. In
estimating the fair value, the managemenl engages third party qualified valuer to perform the valuations if require.

Estimates and judgemenls are continucusly evalualed. They are based on historical experiance and other
faclors, including expeclations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and lhat are
balieved to be reasonable under the circumstances (Refer nole 13 and 14).

{d} Impairment of assets

Al the end of each reporing period, lhe Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, plant and
equipmant lo deteninine whether there Is any indication that these assets have sufferad an impairmant loss. \f any
such indication exists, the recaverable amount of the asset is estimated in order lo deterrmine the extent of the
impairment {oss (if any).

Recoverable amouni of Properly, planl and equipment is the higher of its fair value less costs of dispesal and
value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounled eslimated future cash flows. This
invelves management estimates on anticipated efficiency of the plant, tuel availability at economical rales,
economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other faciors. Any subsequent changes (0 cash flow
due to changes in the above mentionad factors could impact the carrying value of assets.
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Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes ta the financial statemenis as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

3)

Transition to Ind AS:

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in ascordance with Ind AS. The Company has adopted
Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as notified by the Ministy of Corporale Affairs with elfecl lrom April C1, 2018,
wilh a transition date of April 01, 2015 These financial statemernts for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first the
Company has preparad under Ind AS. For all periods upta and meluding Lhe year ended March 31, 2016, the
Company prepared its financial slalements in accordance with the previously applicable indian GAAP (previous
GAAP),

The adeption of tnd AS has been carried out in accardance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adaption of Indian Accounting
Standards Ind AS 101 requires that all ind AS slandards and interpretations that ara issued and effective far the first
Ind AS financial statements be applied retrospeactively and consistantly for all financial years presented. Accordingly,
the Company has prepared financial stalements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2017, fogether
with the comparative information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2015, The Company’s opening ind AS
Balance Sheet has been prepared as at April 01, 2015, the date of transition to Ind AS.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has avaited certain exemptions and exceptions in
accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below, The resulting difference between the carrying values of the
assels and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and previous GAMAF have
besn recognisad direclly In aquily {retained earnings or anather appropriate category of cquity) This note cxplaing
the adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAR financial statements, including lhe Balance
Sheet as at April 01, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the yesr ended March 31, 2016,

(a) ind AS opticnal exemptions
i, Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopler to measure all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as at the date of transition 1o Ind AS at fair value or previous GAAP carrying value and use
that as #s de=med cost as al the date of transiticn after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning
liabilities This exemplion can alsv be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets”.
Accordingly, the Company has elecled to mgasure all of its property, plant and equipment (FFPE) at their fair
values The Company has elected to use previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost for Intangible Assets
coverad by Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets”.

ii. Longterm forgign currency monetary ltems

Ind AS 181 permits a first time adopter 1o continue the accounting pelicy adopted for accounting for exchange
differences arising from transiation ol long-term {oreign currency manetary items recognized in the tinancial
statements for the yedr encding March 31, 2016, The Company has opted to follow this exemption.

(b} Ind AS mandatory exemptions

The Company has applied the {ollowing exceptions from full retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily
required under ind AS 101,

. Estirnates
An entity’s estimates in accordanca wilh Ind ASs gt the date of \ransition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date 1 accordance with previous GAAP {after adjustments to reflecl any difference
in accouniing policies), unless there is objeclive evidence that those estimates were 10 error.
Ind AS estimates as at Aprl 01, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity
wilh previous GAAP, The Company made astimates for foltowing items in accoerdance with Ind AS at the date of
transitton as ibese ware not required under previous GAAR:

+Impairment of financial assets based on expeacted credil loss model
ii. Classlflcatton and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entily to assess classification and measurement of financial assets {debt instruments) on

lha basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the dale of transition to Ind AS. Cansequently, the Company
has applied the above assessment based on facts and circumstances exist at the transitian dale.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Privata Limited
Notes to financial statemenls for the yaar ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

B.1 Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 01, 2013
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Note No March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Total equity (shargholder's funds) as per pravious GAAP 58,781 58,286
Adjustments

Borrowings al amorised cost c2 3721 3,721
Classification of deb inslruments as equity C4 35980 -
Changas in fair valug of Relention Money o 412 418
Fair value of derivative contracts 1 3918 3,830
Total adjustments 44,038 7,969
Total equity as per Ind AS ) 102.819 56,255

B.2 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 3% March 2016
Rupees in lakhs
Particulars Nate Ne. March 31, 2018

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 494

Adjustments:

Changes in fair valur of derivative cantracls o | an
Totzl adjustments 90
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 584

B.3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the staiements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016
Rupess in lakhs

Effect of transition

Particulars As per Previgus io
GAAP Ind AS As per lnd AS

Net ¢cash flow from cperaling activities ; - .
Met cash flow from investing activities 6.974 - 6,974
Met cash flow from financing activities 2,332 - 2,532
Met increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9,506 - 9,508
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 01, 2015 1,745 - 1,743
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 20156 11.251 - 11,253

B4 Analysis of changes it ¢cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of statement of cash flows undar Ind AS
Rupges in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2016 Aprll 91, 2015
Cash and cash squivalents as per previous GAAP 11,251 1.745
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 11,251 1,745

statement of cash flows




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Netes la financial staternents for the year ended March 31. 2017 (continued)

C: Notes to first-time adoption:

C.1: Derivative Instruments

Under Ind AS, all the derivative inslruments are fair valued with recognition of both gains and losses in Statemenl of Profit and
Loss as against under Previcus GAAP only lossas on derivative contracts are recegnised on marking them to markel {as per the
anngungcernent by institule of Chanered Accountants of India) and in case of lorward coniracts. premiumddiscount on such
conlracts were amoriized as expensa/income pver the life of conteact.

Consequerl 1o above, the total equily as 3t 31 March 2016 increased by Rs 3.919 lakhs (1 April 2015 Rs 3,830 lakhs} and preiil
for the year ended March 31, 2018 is increased by Rs. B0 takhs

C Z: Borrowings at amortised cost

Ind AS 109 raquiras transaclion costs incurred lowards ocdginalion of borrowings to be deducted from the ¢armying amounl of
torrowings on minal racognition, These costs are recognised in the profit or loss over lhe lenure of the borrowing as part of the
inlergst expense by applying the effective interest rate method.

Consequent to above, the tolal equity as at March 31, 2018 is increased by Rs 3.721 lakhs (April 31, 2015 - Rs. 3,721 lakhs).

C 3: Other long-term financial liabilities at amortized cost

Under Pravious GAAPR, all inlersst fres long-term financial liabilities were carried at transaction value. However, undar Ing AS, as
the long-term financial liabililies are measured at fair value on nitial recagnition and has been discounled using incremantal
berrowing rate which will be unwing subsequently

Consequent to above, the total equity as at March 31, 20116 15 increased by Rs. 418 lakhs (Apdl 01, 2015 - Rs. 418 {akhs)

C 4: Classification of inter-corporate deposits to equity

Ind AS 32 requires classification of financial instruments issued inlo financiat liabillies or equity. Inter-corporale deposits
racaivad Trom the Holding Company meet the definition of an equily, as the terms do not casl any contracival obligation on the
Company o make any payment. Accordingly the same has been classified as equity under Ind AS,

Consequent to above, the lotal equity as a1 Masch 31, 2016 18 incraased by Rs. 35 880 lzkhs (Apnl 01, 2015 - Rs, Nil).
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Rajasthan Sun Technigque Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

4.3 Other Intangible assets
Rupees in lakhs

Computer Software

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at April 01, 2015 1
Additions during the year 1
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2016 2
Additions during the year o4
Carrying amaount as at March 31, 2017 36

Accumulated amortisation
Batance as at April 01, 2015

For the year 2
Balance as at March 31, 2016 2
For the year 32
Balance as at March 31, 2017 34

Net carrying amount

As at Apnl 01, 2015 1
As at March 31, 2016 -
As at March 31, 2017 €2




Aajasthan Sun Tachnigun Enorgy Private Limited
Mates to the financial statements a3 af and for the year sadad Margh 31, 2017 {continued)

Partlculars

4 d(a} Finance assets - Noo-current
fUrsSzurgd At o sidgred good)

dA.4{a) Denvativg ass6ls (Mak W0 Markpl ] a0 de v asiruneer i (e

4. d{b} Sezunly deposis

4.5 Other non-current ass<ls
[L'nszoured and consicarad Jocd)

Sapilal g e Kot ool 100

Finance assets - Cucrent
4 .&(a} inveatments {Hon.trada) - Curcent

Unaueiad - Mozl fund amits
Ralance 1quid fend - direct grosdl olan - groaih oplion

INumber of units NiL{ZY Apnl, 2016: NiUnlis. 1 April 2215 220 888 nils)
face value of Rs 1 000 each)

Aggragate amasnt of groted wvesments

4.6{b) Trade receivables
Insacures snd cansiderad grod}

Qlhgrs

d.6fc) Cash and cash equivalents

Balaace with banks:
W Currant &ccagnl
0 d2pesit aezoum with oncinal matur by of Igse the v thegs nankbs

4.6[4) Bank balances other than cash and canh eguivalanls
Deposrs with onginal rmstunty of mars than trea months pul £58 “han tyshe months

4.8(2} Loans - Cyment
(Wsearad sud vonwdercd guedy

Loans f advannos [ 200 ¢ rees

4,6(f) C1her current fnancial ass#te
fUnsecured and sonsidered gocdi

Eecunly dzprsits
fdvarce v tablz in casi
Lisreaitive fibsies Aok o Matket] on derretve Instrumants (Net)

4.7 Oter currant assets
{Ursecurad and considered good)

Belancz with stalutary suthonillag Lnchydes servios tax sradi and VAT recovarable)
Praomd expaises

_Rupees i lakhs

As at LER A3 at
Margly 34, 247 “arch nl 2095 Aprl G 2715
+ 104 1833 1,154
1104 1,958 EERED
q 4 4
= 4 Fy
7.331 3512 12443
7.831 9512 13,043
. N 8 659
- 8,550
. - B,539
4,457 22 .
4,637 320 P
332 1,217 214
- 10,024 15307
332 11,251 1,746
294 - -
9.954 - =
5 2 @
5 z @
143 199 14
59 105 a3
. az -
130 207 522
2 - -
124 123 108
126 126 108
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Rajasthan Sun Techniquo Enorgy Private Limited
Netos to tha finandal statements s of ard for tho year ervded Margh 24, 2017 {connuad)

4.91

4911

4811 {a)

1.98.1.2

4.2.2

42,1

Particulars

Uther equity

Balang2 at the end of the yoar
Instewmant antirely equity in natre

Frefegngs Shares
Ivzrcorporzsta deoosits

Prefergnce Shares

Authanzed
10,000,000 1 arck 21 2046 10700300 Ap A 01 2015 10 400,00) mr=fargroe shares of
Rz, 1 2a¢n

Issued, subseribed and paid up capital
7 838 350 March 31, 2016: 2,356,360 Apnl €, 2013 2,556,350 shares of [s 1 sacn

Recong liztion of numhor of sharys

Praferance shares (refer note £.9.1.1 1a))
Rabaara al ke beginiing of tne vear
2288350 Narch 31, 2076: 2.056.250; Apri 01, 2044 2 256,250 bz

Rz 1 eagn

kL gndd of the yesr - 2 356 350 (Mareh 34, 2018 2.856.330, Agnl 01, 2005
Abares ot By 1cgon . -

Termsd rights attached to prelerence shares

. Rnpau-; n lakhs

Az a Asoat AS 3l
March 31, 2017 Morgn 31 308 Apeil 01 2015
29 29 29
£4 450 35920
H4.513 34,009 29
100 104 “03
103 100 1i0p
20 29 29
2% 249 )

Mumbers in lakhsg

farch 31, 217
Moz of Shares

March 31, 2098
Hos af Bharas

il

el

7.5% Compulsmy Converliole Redeomabibe Non-Cumiilallve Preferance Shares (CCRPS)
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Rajasthan Sun Techrlgue Energy Privato Limitgd

Metes lo the financiyl statements 33 af and for 1he year ended Macch 31, 2017 {eonbnusd) Rupees n lakhs
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Rajasthan Jun Technique Energy Private Limitad
Meles to tan fmancidl siatements a3 of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (Serinued)

Rypess in lpkha
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

MNotes to the financlai statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

Particulars
4.13 Other income
Interast income:
Bank deposits

Other

Dividend income:
On current Investment in mutual funds

Net gain on sale/ accrual of income on investments:
Currgnl investment in mutuai funds

Nel gan on settlemnent and fair value change arrising on derivative
contracts

4,19 Financa cost

Met less on setilement and fair valua chiange arrising on derivative
cantracts

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Yaar ended
March 31 2016

874 200

23

- @

- 538

- 1,066

697 1,804
1,776 878
1,779 978




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued}

5)

6)

7)

Project status -

Tha Campany has declared its Concentrated Solar Power (CSP) plant as commercially operationzl (COD)
on November 17, 2014, as per the terms of power purchase agreament (PPA)Y against the scheduled
conusisgioning date of March 07, 2014 The Expert Commitlee conslituted by Ministry of New and
Renewable Engrgy (MNRE) has recommended extansion of Scheduted Commercial Date (SCD) (il
Clecember 31, 2014 without levy of any penalty. Accordingly, lhe Company, glong with other CSP
davelopers, has filad an application/petition with Central Electnicity Regulalory Authority (CERC) for
exlension of SCD and the final erder is awaited. The Company 1s of the opinion that there will not be any
financial imglications due to delay in achieving COD.

Mecessary technical upgrades of the plant is under process to operate the plant at its intendad capsacity.
Accordingly, the Company has continued capilalization of preoperative expenditure and Interes! during
consltruction {net of revenue during constructions) as capilal work in progress

Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a)

b

As per the terms of the PPA entered with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited {NVVN), the Company was
required to generata rainirnurn committed energy Ir the contract year subsequent to declaration of
commercial oparation date (CODJ. The Company has received a demand of Rs 5,536 lakhs {31 March 2016
of Rs. 2,424 lakhs, 1 April. 2015 of Rs. Nil) towards shortfall in minimum cnorgy supply for period from
November 17, 2014 (date of COD as per the rerms of PPA} to March 31, 2017. In the rasponse o said
demand, the Corapany has communicated NVYN that the shortfall is due to factors beyond the control of lhe
Company. Considering the said facts and the terms of the PPA, the Company has disputed the demand
raised and no provision has been made in the financiat statements for the said periad and the current
financial year

Futura cash flows in respect of the above matter can only be determined based on the future outcome of
various uncertain factors.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexeculed on capital account (net of advances paid) and not
provided for Rs. 1,538 lakhs (March 31, 2016 Rs. 718 lakhs, April 01, 2015 Rs. 4B4 lakhs).

Details of remuneration to auditors;

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

(a) As sudilors

For statutory audit 32 30
For athers 1 1
(b} Out-of-pocket expenses 1 1




Ra)asthan Sun Technique Enargy Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

8) Employee benefit otligations

The Company has classified vanous einployee benefits as under:

a) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company liability for sick and privileged leave

Rupees in lakhs

Provision for leave encashment

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 01, 2015

Current”

11

6

Non-currant

35

[44 ] L)

15

" The Comgpany does note an unconditional right to defer the settlements.

b} Deflned ¢contribution plans
{1) Pravident fund
{if} Superannuation fund
(il) State defined cantribution plans
- Employees' Pansion Schame 1995

The provident fund and the siale defined contnbution plan are operated by the regional provident fund commissioner
and the suparsnnualion fund is adminislared by the trust. Under the schemes the Company is required Lo conlribule a
specified parcentage of payroll cost 1o the retirement benefit schemes to fund the henefits

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Capilal work-in-progress for the year:

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
| March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
(i1 Contribution to provident fund 15 14
(i) Contribution o amployees’ superannuation fund 3 2
(i) Confribution to employees’ pension scheme 1995 10 g
{iv) Contribulion to employees’ deposit linked insurance scheme 2 2

¢} Pastemployment obligation

Gratuity

The Company has a delined benelil plan in Indiz governad by the payment of Graluity Act. 1972, The plan enlitie an
employees, who has randered al least five years of conlinuous service. 1o gratuity at the rate of fifteen days basic
salary for every completed years of services or part thereof in excess of six months, based on lhe rale of basis salary

last drawn by the employee concernad,

{i} Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

Valyations in respect of gratuty have been camed oul by an independent acluary. as at the Balance Sheat date,

based on the following assumptions:

employees in number ol years

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 | April 01, 2015
Discount rale (per annum} 7.05% 7.80% 7.85%
Rate of increase in compensalion levels 7.50% 7 50% 7.50%
Rate of return on plan assets 7.05% 7.80% 8.25%
Expected average remaining working lives of 10 22 10 09 9.69

The estimale of rate of escalztion in salary considered in acluarial valuation, takes inlo account inflation, senicrity, promaotian

and other relevant factors including supply and denand in the employment market.

@ Amount is below Lha reunding off norm adepted by the Company,
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Netes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

{ii) Balance sheet amount {Gratuity Plan)

Rupees in lakhs
T

Particulars l;’g?isg;r:ilo\:]alue of Net amount
April 01, 2015 ) 14 14
Current service cost — 4 1
| Interest cost @ @
Total ameunt recognised in profit and lossf Capital work-in-
progress 4 4
Remeasurements .
{Gain }/ loss from change in financial assumptions i 1
Exocrience {gains) / losses o) 8
Total amount recognised in other comprehenslve income/
Capital work-in-progress 9 3
Employer contributions - -
Benelfit payments 2 -
March 31, 2016 . 27 27
o Rupees in lakhs
Particulars I:lr;;.‘%ear;nitozalue of Net amount
[ April 01, 2016 27 27
Current service cosl ) 6
Interest cost - 2 2
Total amount recognised in profit and loss / Capital work-in-
progress _ i 8 8
Remeasurements _
Return an plan assets. excluding amount inclided in intarest
expense/income) B = - |
{Gain) / loss lroin change in demographic assumptions -
{Gain ) / loss from change i financial assumptions 4 4
Experience [gains) / losses 8 4
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income /
Capital work-in-progress 12 12
Employar contributions -
Benefit payments - -
March 31, 2017 47 47

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars o March 31, 2017 March }1, 2016 |April 01, 2015
Prasent value of funded cbligalions 3 - .
Fair vaiue of plan assets - - -
Deficit of gratulty plan - - -
Unfunded plans 47 27 14
Deficit of gratuity plan 47 27 14




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivily of the defined benefit obiigation to changss in the weighled pringipal assuroplions 1s:

Change in assumptions | Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
Particulars March March March March March March
31,2017 | 31,2016 31, 2017 31, 2016 31, 2017 31, 2016
Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% -5.23% -4.81% 571% 5.23%
Rate of increass in
compensation (evels 0.50% 0.50% 5.66% 2.21% -5.24% -4.85%

The above sensitivily analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all ether assumplions constant in
practice, this is unlikely to accur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity af lhe defined benefil ghligation to significant acluariat assumptions the same method {present value of the
defined benelil abligaticn caiculaled with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reponing penod) has bheen
applied as when calcutabing the defined oenefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. The meihods and types of
assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prier period.

(iv)Defined benefit llability and employer contributions:

The Company has agreed that it will aim to eltminate the deficit in defined benefil plan in subsequent years.
Furding tevels are monitorad an an annual basis and the current agreed conlribution rate 18 8.32% of the basic
salanes.

The weighted average duration of the defined banefil obligation is 10 93 years (2016 — 10.03 years, 2015-5.34
years)

(v} The Company has secondsd cerain amployees o the subsidiaries. As per the lerms of the secondment. liability
towards Salaries, Provident fund and leave encashment will be provided and paid by the respective subsidiaries
and gratuly will be paid / provided by the Company. Accordingly. provision for gratuity as disdosed includes cost
of employees seconded as well.

{vi) For unfunded plan, the Cempany has na compulsion to pre fund the liabilily of the plan. The Company's policy 1s
not to externally fund these liaoilities but instead recegnizes the provision and pay lhe graluity 1o its employees
directly from its own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited

Notes to the financlal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {(continued)

9) Assets pledged as security

Rupees in Lakhs

Particulars March ?1, 2017 | March 31, 2016 :' April 01, 2015

Non-current |

Financial assets -

Firsl charge

Derivative instruments 1.104 1,958 1,134

Other financial assets 41 4 4

Non-financlal assets

First charge

Praperty, plant and equipmant 2.833 3.185 3.125

Capital work-in-prograss 248,306 244,418 222,411

Other Intangible assets 82 - 1
| Cther non-current assels 7.8 9.612 13,043

Total Non-current assets_pledged as security 260,140 259,177 239,718

Current

Flnanciai assets

First charge _ |

Investinents | - 8.558

Trade receivables 4,637 | 820 -

Cash and bank balances 10,286 11,251 1,746

Lcans 5 2 @

Other financial assets 199 287 522
—Nor)_-financial assets

Other current assals 126 128 108

Total non-current assets pledged as security 15,253 12,488 10.93?

Total assets pledged as security 275,393 271,665 250,653




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

10} Relaled party transactions’

As per Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS-24) 'Related Parly Transactions’ as prescribed by Companies {Indian
Accaunling Slandards) Rules, 2015, the Company related parties and transactions are disclosed below:

A, Investing Parties/Prometers having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly

Companies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra)

Individual
Shri Anit D, Ambani (Chairman)

B. Parties where control exists:

Holding Company
Reliance Power Limited (RPowrer)

Fellow subsidiaries:

Dhursar Sciar Power Private Limited {DSPL)
Rosa Powar Supply Company Lirnited (RPSCL)
Coastal Anchra Power Limited {CAPL)
Jharkhand Integrated Power Limited (JiPL)
Sasan Power Limited (SAPL}

Samalkot Power Limited {SMPL)

Reliance Natural Resouces Lirnited (RNRL)

C | Details of transactions during the year and closing balance at the end of the year: ]

Rupeesin lakhs

farch 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

E ' Transactions during the year:

Reimbursement of expenses and advances

| - R Power 107 165
- SAPL (@ (@)
| - RPSCL o 1
| - SMPL - @ |
Relmbursement of expenses and advances given
- SAPL - @
- R Power - 30
Material / Service received
- CAPL - 9
- JIPL : 11
Material / Service billed against EPC Cantract o
- Rinfra 2,047 1,377
Legal and Professional charges paid towards shared o
Services
| - R Power 58 57
tnter Corporate Deposit Received
| - R Pawer 13,810 22,359 |
Inter carporate depasit repaid
- R Pawer 400 100

@ Amounlis below the-rtunding oft norm adopted by thé Company.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial staternents as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

. ) o Rupees in lakhs |
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 01, 2015
{iiy | Closing Balance :

Equity share capital (excluding premium) }
- R Power B 288 288 286
Preference share capital (excluding premium) |
- R Power 29 29 29
Retentlon payable towards EPC
- R Infra 5,532 5,542 4,914
Other current llabilities
- RNRL - - 107
Advance against EPC contract )
- R Infra 7,831 9,996 13,043
Inter Corporate Depoesit Payable
- R Power 04,490 | 35,980 13,721
Guarantees Issued on behalf of the Company
- R Powser 11,471 11,471 11,471

{iii)

{iv]

The Holding Company has entered into agreemenis with (he lenders of the Company wherein it has commified to
extend financial support in the form of equity or debt as per the agreed means of finance, in respect of the project
bheing undertakan, including hedging suppor, investmenl suppaort and project cost overrun support..

The above disclosures do notinclude transaclions with public utility service providers, viz, eleciricity,

telecommunicalions in the nornal course of business.

The Campany has entered into a2 memorandum of understanding for sharing of cerlain assats belween the

Company and DSPL

@ Amount is below the rounding aff nom adopted by the Company,

11} Earnings/ {Loss) per share:

FParticulars

Yeaar ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 231, 2016

Profit available to equity shareholders

Net profit afler tax [A} (Rupees in lakhs) - (1,211} 584
Weighied average number of equity sharas (B) 2,856,350 2,856,350
Basic earnings per share [A/B) {{Rupees) (42.43) 2041
Weighted avorage number of potential equity shares on account of conversion 2,856.350 2,856,350
of preference shares (C) ~

Weighled average number ol shares for Diluted EPS(D=B+C} 5,712,700 5712700
Diluted earnings per share {A/D) { Rupees) (42.43) 10.21 |
Nominal value of an equity shars {Rupees) 10 10

*7.5% compulsory converlible redeemable non-cumulative preference shares had anti-dilutive effect on sarnings per share
ang have not heen considered for the pupess of cormputing diluted earning per share.




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued}

12} Income laxes

The major compoanants of income tax expense for lhe years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 are as under:

{a) Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Income tax expense

Current year tax - fale)
Total - o]e]

(b} The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate :

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars 3 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Profit before 1ax (A} {(1.212) 383
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.608% - {419 236
Tax effect of amounts which are not deduclible{laxaide) in
calculating taxable income.

Tax impact on disallowed expenses (net) {1.997) {2,226)

MAT credit entitlerment not recognisad - | 99

Unused tax losses for which no deferred assets has been

recognised 2416 1990
Income tax expense - 99
{c) Tax liabilities! (Assets); } Rupees in lakhs |
Provision for income tax (advance lax) — Opening balances 178 511 |
Taxes paid {net of refund) 114 {56) |
Current tax payable for the year - 90
E xcess provision written off 1 - (376
Pravision for income lax {advance tax) — Clesing balances 292 178

*The unused tax losses were incurred which is not likely to generate taxable incama in Lhe foresesable future.

13) Fair value measurements

{2} Financlal Instruments by categery

B Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Apcil 1, 2015
Amortised Amortised Amortised
FVPL cast FVPL cost FVPL | cost
Financial assets
Investments '
Mulual funds - - o - 8,959
Security Depasil - 133 - 153 - 154
Derivative assets 1,104 - 1,990 1,134
Trade recelvables - 4,837 - 820 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 332 - 11.251 - 1.745
Bank deposits with more than 12 months i 9.954 i . - -
malurity
Loans / advances lo amployees - 3 - 2 - @
Advance recoverablg in cash - S50 - 106 - L
Total financlal assets 1,404 15,131 1,990 12,332 | 1,134 10,831
Financial liahilities -
Borrowings - 145,632 - | 180,077 - 160,667
Loans from related parties - - - - - 13721
Security deposits received - 35 - 35 - -
Creditors for capital expenditure - 511 - 848 - 1,499
Retention money payable . 5,607 « 5,584 - 4,825
Derivatives Liabilities . 62 - E - 209 | -
Other financial ligkilibes- 1 - ] L s2 L i 264
| Total financial fabilities . 82 15«2“'@7} . 166,723 | 209 181,776




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the flnancial statements as of and far the year ended March 31, 2017 (continued)

(b)

This section explains the judgements and estimates mades in delennining the fair values of he financiat instfruments that
are (a) recogniscd and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortisad cost and for which fair vaiues are disclosed
in the financial statements. To provide an indicaten about the raliability of the mputs used in determining fair value, the

Fair value hierarchy

Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard An

axplanation of each level follows undernaath the (able

. Rupees in lakhs
Financial assets and tiahilities measured at fair value - Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2017
Financial assets _
Derivalives 1,104 - 1,104
Totai financial assats 1,104 - 1,104
Financial llablilties
Derivatives 62 - B2
Total financial hiabitities 62 - | 62
Rupees in lakhs
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost for which fair values are disclose as at March 31,
2017
Finangial assets ]
Secuwrity depasils 3 4 4
Total financial assets - 4 4
Financial Liabilities
Borrowngs 148,617 - 148,817
Total financial liakilities 148,617 -1 148,617
- Rupees in lakhs
Financial assets and liabilitles maasured at fair value ~ Level 1 Level 2 Levef 3 Totai
recurring fair value measurements as at March 31, 2016
Financial assets
Derivatives 1,990 - 1,990
Total financial assets 1,990 - 1,990 |
Rupees in lakhs
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost for which fair values are disclose as af March 31,
2016
Financial assels
Securily depasit - 4 4
Total financial assels - 4 4
Financial Liahilitles
Borrowings 165,819 - 165.849
i Total financial liahilities 165,849 - 165,849
N Rupees in lakhs
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - Level 1 Level 2 lLevel 3 Total
recurring fair value measurements as at April 01, 20115
Financial assets
Derivalives B 1,134 - 1,134
Mulual Fund I 8,559 - 8,559
Total financial assets 1= 9,693 9.693
Financial liabilities
Derivatives - ,... 200 | o ot 209
Total financial liahilities - 209 S 209
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—

Rupees in lakhs

Assels and liabilities which are measured at amortised Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
cost for which fair values are disclose as at April 01,
2015

Financial assets

Security deposll _ - - 4

4
Total financial assets o - = 4 4 |

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - 168,366 - 168,366

Retention monegy payable - 4,014 4914

(¢

| Total financial liabitities - 168,366 4,914 | 173,280

Valuation processes

Tha Company obtains assistance of independent and compatent third party valuation experts to perform the valuatians of
financial assets and habilities required for financial reperting purpases, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of
valuation processas and resuits are held between the Company and Lhe valuer on pericdically bass.

Digcount rates are delarmined using a capital asset pricirey model 1o caleulate a pre-lax rale that reflacts current market
assassments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assel.

{d}

Valuation technique used to determing fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to value finandial instruments include:

(e)

The mutual funds are vaiued using ihe closing Mel Assats Value (NAV). NAV represents tha price at which the issuer
will issue these unils and will redeem such units of mutual fund to and from the investor.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as lhe present value of the estimated lulure cash flows based on
observable curves.

The fair value of forward forgign exchange contracts is delenmined using Bloomberg forward contract pricing madel,
which determines fair value on a discounted cash flow basis.

The far value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.
The fair value of remaining financial instruments I1s determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value of financial assets and liahilities measured at amorntised cost

_ _ Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value Carrylng Fair
amount amount amount Value
_Financial Assets 1
Security deposiis 4 1 ' 4 4 4 4
Total financial assets i 4 4 4 4 4 4
i
Financial Llabilitles
Barrowings” 145,682 148,817 150,077 165,840 1640, 667 158,366
Relention mongy payable - - - L - 4,914 4914 |
| Total financial liabilities 146,682 148,617 160,077 165,849 165,581 173,280 |

“Carrying amount of borrowing includes long lerm borrawing. current malurity of long term borrowing and inlsrest
accrued but not dug on borrewing.

The carrying amount ol current linancial assets and labilities (other than current maturity of long tesm borrowing and
interest accruad bul nol due on borrowing which have been considered as part of borrowing} are considered to be
the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

The far value of the long-term Barrowings wilh floating-rate of inlerest is ot impacled due to interest rate changes,
and will not be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is ne significant chanaa n the nndar-lving
credit risk of the Company borrawing (since the date of incegtionof thefoansi,

For financial agsets and liabiliies that are maasorad at fair alue. the caroving amount is equal/igifie rarvatues
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Note
Level 1: Leve! 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumenls measured using quoted prices

Level 2' The fair vafue of financial Instruments that are nol traded in an acfive market {for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation lechimiques which maximise the use of obsarvable market data ang rely as littia
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all sigmficant inputs requirad lo fair value an instrument are ohservable, the
instrament is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of lha significant inputs is not based on cbservable market dala, the instrument 1s included in level
3 This is the case {ur unlisted equity securities which are included in level.

There werg no transfers between any levels during the year

The Company's policy I1s to recognise transfer into and transfer oul of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period,
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14} Financial risk management
The Company’s business aclivilies expose il 10 a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, markel risks and credil

foreign exchange

risk.
| Risk Exposure arising from Msasurement Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis only high rated
receivables, financial assels banksfinslitttions are
measured at ainonisad cost. accapted.

Liquidity Risk | Borrowings and other liabililies '_Rollmg cash flow forecasts | Availahilily of committed credil

lines ard borrowing facilties
ilarket nsk — Recognised financial assels and Sensitivity analysis Partly hedge by fareign

liabilites not denominated in Indian exchange forward. cross

rupege (INR) currency and call spread
contracl
Markef rizk - Lang-lerm borrowings at variable Sensitivity analysis Partly hedge by interest rale
intarest ralg rales Swap

{a) Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which 1s the risk that countecparty will defaull on its contractual obligation
resulting in a financial loss to the Cornpany. Credit risk arises frary cash and cash equivalents, financiai assets
carried at amoertised cost and deposits with banks and financial inslitutions, as well as credit exposuras to trade
customers Including cutstanding receivables.

Credit risk management

Credit risk 18 managed at Company level depanding on fhe palicy surrounding credit risk managemant Far banks
and financial institlulions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. Generalfy all policies surrounding cradit risk
have been managed al campany level excapt for those surrounding accounts receivable balances.

The Company's policy to manage this risk is to invest in debt securitigs that have a good credit rating.

The Company considers the probatulity of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongaing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase 0 credit risk the Cormpany compares lhe nsk of a default ceourring on the asset as at the
reporting dale with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

A significant increase in cradil nsk is presumed! if @ debter is more than 350 days past due in making a contractual
payment. A defaull on z financial asset is when the counterparly faids to make contractual payments within 360 days
of when they fall due. Financiat assets are written off when there is no reasonakle expactation of recovery, such as a
dablor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.

Trade recevabies consists of Power Procurers with whom Company has entered into Power Purchase agreement
(PPAY In order lo scll the electricity generated at its power station Credit risk 1n case of trade receivables would arize
if the counter party would not be able o settls their cbligalions as agreed in the Power Purchase agreement (PRA).
To manage the above risk the Company on an monlhly basis assesses the financial reliability of the customers,
taking into account the financial condition. currant economic trends and analysis of bad-debls and ageing of
accounls receivables In addition lhe receivable balunces are monitored by the Company on an ongoing basis, with
the result thal lhe Company's exposura to had-debts is not significant.

Furher trade receivable of lhe Company consists of cuslomers which are mainly state gavernmeant owned power
distribution Coimpanies,

Liquidity risk

(Y Prudent iquidity nsk managament implias mainlaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availatlity of funding through an adequate amount of comamitted credil facililies to meet obligations when
due and 1o close out market pasilions. Due to lhe dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, company
freasiry maintains flaxibility in funding by maintaining avaitability under committed credit linas,

Management monitars rolling lorecasts of the Compary’s liquidity posilion and cash and cash eguivalenis
on the hasiz of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at locatl level in the operating companies
of the Companvinasthiganee with nractice and limits sef bwthe company. These limits vary by location to
take into accoun e IQUIE o1 the market in which thes Bl dfierates I addition, the Company's liquidity
assels necessarytomaetingse, monitorng balance sheet liauidityitatios againstiniemaland external
regulatony reauiremeants ankl mamitaininn daht inancind-nlEns
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{(H) Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosad in the below are Lhe contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances due wilhin 12
maonths equal iheir carrying balances as lhe impact of discounling is not significant.

Rupees in lakhs
March 31. 2017 Less than E&Ti:; ; Mare than | o
1 years years 5 years
Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Barrowings® 18,123 69,907 110,065 198.096
Securtty deposils received 35 - - 35
Creditars for capital expenditure 511 | - - 511
Retention money pavable 5,607 ] - 5,607
Cther financial lizbililies 152 - - 152
Total Norn-derivatives Financial Habilities 24,428 69,907 110,065 204,401
Derivatives Finaacial liabilities
Forward
Inflerw {1.203) B - - {1.203}
Qutflow 1,267 - - 1.267
Total Derivatives Financial liahilities 64 - - G4
Rupees in lakhs
Between 1 |
March 31, 2016 ﬁ";?a:';a” year ang 5 "5“3;2:23“ Total
_ years
Non-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings™® 18,851 73177 129,584 221 613 :
| Security deposits received 35 -~ - 35
Creditors for capital expenditure 845 - - 846
Retention manay payable 5,584 - - 5,684
Other financial liabilities 181 - - 181
Yotal Non-derivatives Financial liabillties 25,497 73,177 129,584 228,258 |
Rupees in lakhs
Between 1
April 01, 2015 j:l-e;f;rt'gan yearand § 213;2:23n Total
years
Mon-derivatives Financial liabilities
Borrowings® 17,853 69 651 138,779 226,383 |
Laans from relaled parties 13,721 13,721
Security depesits received - - - -
Creditors for capital expenditure 1.409 - - 1,499
Retenlon money payable 10 5332 - 5,342
Other financial liabilities 364 - - 864
Total Non-derivatives Financial tiabilities 34,147 74,983 138,779 247 909
Derivatives Financial liahilities
Forward
Inflow (4.846) = - - {4,846)
Qutflaw 5,062 - - 5.062
Total Derlvatives Financial liabilities 216 - - 216

‘Includes contractual interest payments based o the interest rate prevailing at the reporting date.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

Motes to the financizal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 {continued)

(b} Market risk

Market risk is the nsk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of
volalility of pnges in the financial markets. Market risk can be further segregated as. a) Fareign currengy risk and

b} intgrest rate risk,

(i} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate
because of changes in fareign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabihties which are in
currancy other than its functional currency. Foreign currancy risk, as defined in Ind AS 107, arises as the vaiue of
recognised monetary assets and ronetary liabililies denominaled in other currancigs flucluate due to changes in

foreign exchange rates.

While the Company has direct exposure 1o foreign exchange rate changes on lhe price of non-Indian Rupee-
denaminated securities and borrowings, it may also be indireclly affectad by the impact of foreign exchange rate
changes on the earnings of companies in which the Company invests. For thal reason, the below sensilivity
analysis may nal nacessanly indicate the lotal effect on the Company's net assets attributable te holders of equily

shares of future movements in foreign exchange rates.

* Forgign currency risk exposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currancy risk (all in USD §) at the end of the reperting pericd expressad in

INR, are as follows.

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 01, 2015

Financlal ilablilties

Borrowings 138.824 163,073 153 637
| Retention money 2,464 2,521 2379
| Creditors - 18 370
| Commilment Fees 221 23 55
Total Financial liabilities 142,310 155,635 156,941
Cowvered by Derivative
Forward contracts 8.189 13.562 17 452
Call spread 15237 15,915 17,212
Cross Currency Swap 5.078 g 899 9,036
Covered by derivatives 31,504 39,376 43,730
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 110,806 116,259 113,211

+ Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure

The sensitivity of profil or loss o charges in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denorminated

financiai instruments.

Impact on profit hefore tax {
Capital work-in- progress**

March 34, 2017

flarch 31, 2016

UsD sensiiivity

FX rate - increase by 6% on closing rate on repording date”

(7.336)

{8,135}

FX rate- decrease by 8% on closing rale on reperiing date *

7220

5.09¢

| * Halding all ather variables gonslant

“The above impacl has been assessed taking inta consideration the accounting policy adopled by the Comnany
for ihe accounting for foreign exchange differences (Refer nate 2.1(m} above}
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15)

186}

(i} Interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from tong-lerm borrowings with variable rates, which expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 the Company's
borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in USD

The Company's fixed rale barrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore nol subject to interesl
rale risk as defined in Ind A8 107, since nether the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate
bzcause of a change in market intarest rates.

s Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to inlerest rate changes at lhe end of the reporting period are as

follows:

"Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016 | Aprii 01,2015

Varlable rate borrowings

61,852

67,560 |

68,7689

v Sensitivity of Inferest

Profit or foss is sansitive 1o higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interesi rates
Rupees in lakhs

Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2017

March 31, 201§

Interest sensitivity

Interest cost — increase by 5% on existing Interest cost

{168}

{181}

| Interest cost - decraase by 5% on existing Interest cost*

166

181

* Holding all other variables constant

Capital Management

{a) Risk Management

The Company's cbjectives when managing capital are to salsguard the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order {o provide returns for sharaholders and benglils for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimat
capital structure to reduce the cosl of capitai. In order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Cempany may
adjust the amount of dividencs paid lo sharaholders, return caprtal to shareholders, issuc new shares or sell asssls to

reduce debt.

The Company mondors capilal on basis of lotat equity and debt on a penodic basis. Equity comprises all components
of aquity includas the fair value iImpact. The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017 tarch 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
Equity (exciuding other reserves) 120.119 102.820 56,256
Debt _ 145,204 158,360 172,751
Total s 265,323 261,180 239,007

{p) The Company is gengrally regular in payment of ils debt service obligation and the Company has nol received
any communicalion from lenders for non-compliance of significant debt covenant.

Segment reporting

Presently, the Company is engaged in only ona segment viz 'Generation of Power' and as such there 1s no separate
reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segrents’. Presenlly, lhe Company's operations are predominantly

confined in India.

Informatlon about major customers

Revenue for the year endad March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 were from customers lecated in India. Customers
include private distribution entities. Revenue to specific custemers excesding 10% of total revenue (or the years
ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 were as follows {refer note 2(o){i)

Customer Name

March 31, 2017,

March 31, 2016

Revenue'in lakhs

"Percent |

NTPC Vidyut Vyapat Nigarm Liniteld)

7,585,

| Revenue in lakhs

Percent

100%

16,1,699

100%

r:
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17} Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary ltems

As explainad abave in nole 2.1(m) with respect to exchange differences, the Company has adjusted the valug of
Capital work-in-pragress by Rs. 3,051 lakhs {(March 31, 2016 is Rs. 8 080 lakhs (foss), Aprit 1, 2015 is Rs 5,928
lakhs {loss)] towards the exchange difference arising on long term feraign currency monetary liabilities towards
depreciable assets,

18) Disclosure under Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Disclosure of amounts payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2008" is based on the information avaitable with the Company regarding the slatus of registraticn of such
vendors under the said Act. There are no overdue principal amaunts [ inlerest payable amounts for delayed payments
to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or
for any eadier years and accordingly there is no interast paid or oulstanding interest in this regard in respect of
payments made during the year or brought farward from previous years.

19) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liahilities

The following table presents the derivative financial instruments thal are offsctas at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016
and April 01, 2015 where as per the terms of the agreement the net position owmg / receivable to a single
countergarty in the same currency has been offsetted and presentad at net amount in the balance sheel.

Rupeges in lakhs

Particulars Gross amounts Gross amount sett- Net balance
off in balance sheet presented in balance
sheet

As at March 31, 2017
Financial Llahilities

Derivative Liabllitios (957) 825 {62}
Total Financial Llabllities {957} g95 {62)
Financial Assets

Derivative Assets _ 1,999 {8535} 1,104
Total Financial Assets 1,999 (895) 1,104

| As at March 31, 2016

Financial Liahilities ’ ]
Derivative Liabifilies (557) - 557 | -
Total Financial Liabilities (557) 557 -
Financial Assets

Derivative Assels 2,548 {HA7) 1,900
Total Financial Assets 2,548 (557 1,990

As at April 01, 2015 i
Financial Liabilities

Derivalive Liabilities (620) 411 (209) |
Tatal Financial Liabilities == (620} 411 (209
Financlal Assets 3

Derivalive Assgls 1,548 411 1,134
Total Financial Assets 1,545 {411) 1,134

24) D'LIring lhe year, the Company had no specified bank notes or no othar denomination nole as defined in the MCA
notification G.5.R. 308(E)} dated March 31, 2017 and there wera no transaction dunng lhe period from November 8,
20186 to December, 30 2016,
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